
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

4500 SW Research Way 
Corvallis, OR 97333-1192 

 (541) 766-6819 
 

 

                       
 

Disposal Site Advisory Committee (DSAC) 
AGENDA 

October 9, 2024 
6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 

4500 SW Research Way, Corvallis, OR 97333 
 

This meeting will be held in-person. The meeting will be accessible online for those unable to attend. 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88247921911?pwd=EQu4Ofo6VVJNGuVr9KmWhTx96R6LKs.1 

Meeting ID: 882 4792 1911 
Passcode: 680718 

 
DSAC website with meeting materials: 

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac  
 

Agenda 
Item # Start Time Duration Topic Speaker(s) 

1 6:00 p.m. 5 min. Call to Order Chair 

2 6:05 p.m. 20 min. Public comment – your comments welcome. Each commenter 
generally limited to 3 minutes. 

 

3 6:25 p.m. 10 min. Review and approve Committee minutes for Sept. 19, 2024 – 
status, discussion, action. Please review the draft minutes 
and meeting video ahead of time. [See below]. 

Public 

4 6:35 p.m. 10 min. Election of Vice Chair – discussion, possible action Committee 

5 6:45 p.m. 20 min. Fire Safety Report – David Hackleman has drafted our findings 
from last meeting; let’s review and  finalize it and send it on 
to the Commissioners.  [See below]. 

Committee 

6 7:05 p.m. 5 min. Break All 

7 7:10 p.m. 20 min. Updated 2023 Landfill Annual Report – Republic has delayed 
its presentation to the Commissioners until October 15, so we 
have an opportunity to recap our guidance from last meeting 
and to add to it, including guidance on items that the 
Commissioners specifically questioned during their review of 
the first draft.  [See below] 

Committee 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88247921911?pwd=EQu4Ofo6VVJNGuVr9KmWhTx96R6LKs.1
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac


 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

4500 SW Research Way 
Corvallis, OR 97333-1192 

 (541) 766-6819 
 

 

                       

8 7:30 p.m. 20 min. 2022 Community Concerns Annual Report – The Committee 
and the public have the draft to be finalized and access to its 
source material [See below]  

Committee 

9 7:50 p.m. 5 min. Request Agenda Items, staff requests for next meeting Committee 

10 7:55 p.m. 5 min. Next meeting/wrap up/adjourn Chair 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   DSAC Membership                                            Benton County Staff 

Name Term  Name 

Brent Pawlowski 1/1/24 - 12/31/25  Petra Schuetz, Interim Community Development Director 

Chuck Gilbert 1/1/24 - 12/31/25  Bailey Payne, Solid Waste Program Coordinator 

Jennifer Field 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   

Matthew Ruettgers 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   

David Hackleman 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   

Jeffrey Morrell 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   

Rachel Pursell 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   

Ken Eklund (Chair) 1/1/22 - 12/31/2024   

Ian MacNab 1/1/24 - 12/31/25   
 

 
Excused:  



Office: (541) 766-6800
Fax: (541) 766-6893 

4500 SW Research Way 
Corvallis, OR 97333 

co.benton.or.us

Benton County 
Disposal Site Advisory Committee 
Packet for October 9, 2024 meeting 

Contents: 
1. Meeting minutes from 9/19/24 (Draft)
2. Memo on DSAC elections from Chuck Gilbert
3. Fire Safety Report from David Hackleman
4. 2023 Coffin Butte Landfill Report – Letter to BOC from

Rachel Purcell
5. 2022 Community Concerns Annual Report (Draft)
6. Community concerns received from 9/18/24 – 9/30/24
7. Answers to questions for Republic Services raised at last

meeting
8. Relevant news articles from 9/18/24 – 9/30/24

3



Office: (541) 766-6800
Fax: (541) 766-6893 

4500 SW Research Way 
Corvallis, OR 97333 

co.benton.or.us

Draft meeting minutes 
from last meeting 

4



4500 SW Research Way 
Corvallis, OR 97333-1192 

(541) 766-6819

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
Disposal Site Advisory Committee (DSAC) 

September 19, 2024 

Benton County DSAC Chair Ken Eklund called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm.  The meeting was 
open to the public virtually via a published Zoom link. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS STAFF 
Ken Eklund, Chair  Petra Schuetz, Interim Community     
Rachel Purcell  Development Director 
Chuck Gilbert  Bailey Payne, Solid Waste Program 
Jeffrey Morrell   Coordinator 
Brent Pawlowski  
Ian MacNab, Republic Services Representative 
David Hackleman (online) 

GUESTS  
Jean Weisinsee, Community member 
Marge Popp, Community member 
Kitty Bartee, Community member 
Jim Fairchild, Community member 
John Skillmon, Community member 
Julie Jackson, Republic Services  
Kate Harris, Community member 
Kevin Kenaga, Community member 
Ginger Rough, Republic Services 
Nancy Whitcombe, Community member 
Debbie Palmer, Community member 
Tom Hewes, Community member 
Joel Geier, Community member 
Mark Henkels, Community member 

ABSENT: Matthew Ruettgers (excused), Jennifer Field 

Agenda Changes 
• Item 7 (Discussion on Elections) was moved to Item 8.
• Item 8 (Staff Presentation on Public Outreach) moved up to Item 7.

Announcements 
• Committee Protocols: Limiting discussion to committee members when in session to

streamline the process.

5



  
Page 2 of 7 

 

• Meeting Schedule: The committee will hold regular meetings on the second Wednesday of 
the month at 6:00 PM, continuing through the end of the year. 

• Public Access Issues: There have been ongoing issues with timely public access to agendas 
and meeting materials. The committee is actively working with staff to resolve these 
problems. Public comments on this issue were encouraged to emphasize the need for 
resolution. 

• Landfill Expansion: The Disposal Site Advisory Committee (DSAC) is not involved in 
decision-making related to Republic Services’ landfill expansion application. Any 
testimony regarding the expansion must be submitted to the decision-making body, the 
Benton County Planning Commission. The committee will hear concerns but cannot 
influence the official decision process. 

 
Agenda Item 2: Public Comment 

Marge Popp: 
o Commented on difficulties finding DSAC-related information online, which used to 

be easily accessible. Requested more detailed and accessible information on the 
committee’s webpage. 

Jim Fairchild: 
o Raised concerns about hazardous waste being deposited at the landfill, specifically 

incinerator ash from Marion County, and its potential environmental impacts. 
o Also questioned whether ENRAC accepts public comment, as there is confusion 

about the public's ability to provide input at their meetings. 
Republic Services Response: 

o Ian MacNab (Committee Member): Explained that the incinerator ash has been 
tested and deemed non-hazardous. DEQ approved its use as cover material after a 
lengthy trial process over 10 years ago. 

o Chair: Clarified that ENRAC is responsible for reviewing the landfill expansion. 
However, it’s unclear if ENRAC will take public comment when the application 
becomes active. Staff will look into this further. 
 

Online Public Comment: 
Nancy Whitcombe 

• Attempted to speak but experienced technical issues. She raised a concern via chat about 
clarifying ENRAC's role in public input, which was noted by the chair for follow-up. 

 
Kate Harris (Soap Creek Resident): 

• Expressed concerns regarding worker safety at Coffin Butte Landfill, referencing the 
August 6th Benton County Commissioner meeting and a recent OSHA inspection. 

• Raised the following questions: 
o Why was an industrial hygienist hired only after a 2024 OSHA inspection and 

worker strike, and has the assessment been completed? 
o What are the safety measures in place for workers exposed to dust and 

contamination at the landfill? 
o Concerns about vehicles being washed without proper containment, leading to 

contamination of local waterways. 
o Questioned the lack of visual screening along Highway 99, required in the existing 

conditional use permit. 

6

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/planning-commission/


  
Page 3 of 7 

 

o Raised concerns about delayed implementation of stormwater management projects. 
• Time limit for public comment was invoked, and she agreed to leave further comments for 

review of the annual report. 
 
Tom Hewes (Soap Creek Resident): 

• Raised the question of the costs to Benton County for hosting the landfill, including: 
o Road degradation, pollution, and landfill fires. 
o Decrease in land values near the landfill. 
o Post-closure costs. 

• Requested any available reports addressing these costs. 
Republic Services Response: 

• Clarified that post-closure management is required for a minimum of 30 years after the 
landfill closes. 

• Mentioned no existing comprehensive report on externalities related to the landfill but 
suggested further inquiry with the County. 

 
Kevin Kenaga (Soap Creek Resident): 

• Commented on the updated report, specifically regarding new testing for the flare at the 
landfill. 

• Kevin Kenaga inquired about the testing procedure: 
o What is being tested? 
o When will the testing be available to the public? 

• Response from Republic Services: 
o Testing is scheduled for October 22. 
o It is a standard procedure for flare or industrial devices to have initial source testing. 

• Kevin Kenaga raised concerns about the daily cover at the landfill: 
o The report mentions daily cover (typically 6 inches of soil), but in reality, mesh 

netting is used, which doesn't prevent odors or wildlife from accessing the garbage. 
o Kevin criticized the accuracy of the report and emphasized the environmental 

impact of not using adequate daily cover, including increased methane emissions. 
• Time limit for public comment was invoked 
• Republic Services Response: 

o The daily cover used is a heavy-duty 200x200 foot tarp, not mesh netting, and is an 
approved alternative daily cover. Using tarps saves clean soil and airspace. 

 
Discussion and Action Items: 

• The committee emphasized the need for a structured process to follow up on public 
comments and questions, particularly those directed at Republic Services. 

• A suggestion was made to compile a concrete list of questions for Republic Services to 
address in future meetings. Staff will organize the questions and submit to Ian MacNab. 

 
3. Agenda Item #3: Fire Safety at Coffin Butte Landfill 

• The committee discussed recent fires at the landfill: 
o Two fires were reported this summer, one near the gas flare stacks and another on 

the working face of the landfill. Both were extinguished after being reported by 
highway drivers. 

o The committee found the fire incidents significant enough to warrant a report to the 
Board of Commissioners. 

o The 2023 Annual Report included some relevant information, but additional details 
about fire safety and responses were needed. 

 

7



  
Page 4 of 7 

 

Proposal for Fire Safety Report 
• David Hackleman volunteered to draft a report summarizing fire safety concerns, 

incorporating feedback from the previous meeting. 
• Committee Agreement: 

o Members agreed to provide comments directly to David. 
o David will reach out to Republic Services for additional information as necessary. 
o The draft report will be reviewed at the next meeting before submission to the 

Board of Commissioners. 
 

4. Agenda Item: 2021 Community Concerns Annual Report 
• Discussion: 

o The report, presented in its proposed final form on page 11 of the packet, was 
reviewed. 

o The committee moved to approve the report to send to the Oregon DEQ to comply 
with state law and committee bylaws. 

• Motion: To accept the report and allow for additional comments made by Rachel Purcell 
• Seconded by: Jeff Morrell. 
• Discussion Points: 

o A focus on concerns about Coffin Butte Road, particularly regarding traffic analysis 
and evacuation routes. 

o Clarifications were made about the nature of responses included in the report. 
o It was suggested that future reports provide more synthesis of comments and 

responses to avoid misrepresentation of concerns. 
• Amendment: Rachel Purcell will add a sentence to the introduction of the report clarifying 

that responses may not fully address all concerns raised. 
• Vote: Unanimously approved with amendments. 

 
5. Agenda Item: Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

• The committee reviewed the minutes from the previous meeting. 
• Amendments: 

o Page 2: Change "2023" to "2024" in reference to the grasslands fire. 
o Page 2: Update the name from "Rick" to "Bob Kipper" for the letter supplier. 
o Page 2: Revise the sentence regarding the response to the fire to "The near fire 

department and Republic responded, and fire damage was contained." 
• Rachel Purcell made motion to approve minutes as amended by Ken Eklund, seconded by 

Jeff Morrell 
• Vote: Unanimously approved. 
• It was suggested to approve minutes earlier in the agenda for efficiency. 

 
6. Agenda Item: Break 

• The committee took a 5-minute break. 
 

7. Agenda Item 7: Coffin Butte Landfill 2023 Report 
• The landfill report was presented at the July meeting but was not accepted by the 

Commissioners and returned to Republic for revisions. The revised report is now set for 
discussion in the upcoming October 1st Commissioners' meeting. 

• The group discussed the need to provide guidance to the Commissioners regarding this 
updated annual report. 

• A volunteer is needed to collate remarks and draft guidance for the Commissioners, as 
relying solely on meeting minutes may not capture the necessary nuances. 

8



  
Page 5 of 7 

 

• Rachel Purcell volunteered to write a letter summarizing the DSAC concerns about the 
2023 report. 

• Members noted that there are specific questions regarding arsenic levels and compliance 
standards that should be included in the guidance. 

• It was suggested to compile a list of relevant questions and comments, particularly 
concerning worker safety and contamination concerns. 

 
Recommendations for the Report 

• Arsenic Monitoring: Continue monitoring levels and compliance; the committee should flag 
ongoing concerns. 

• Carbon Mapper Data: Request inclusion of carbon mapping flyover data in the report, emphasizing 
its relevance to landfill monitoring. 

• Discuss the appropriateness of mixing 2023 and 2024 information within the annual report. 
Suggestion was made to maintain focus on the specific reporting year. 

• EPA Inspection Clarity: Request clarification from the Commissioners on the number of 
exceedances reported in EPA inspections and the context of these findings. 

• A discussion on the need for better context surrounding data findings, such as the number of 
measurements taken compared to the number of exceedances, was initiated. 

• It was suggested that the guidance document include specific recommendations for Republic to 
enhance their reporting and transparency practices. 
 
Discussion Points: Landfill Compliance and Methane Management: 

o Republic Services mentioned weekly monitoring for exceedances, dependent on the time of year. 
o Discussion on methane presence and management; acknowledgment that methane cannot be 

completely eliminated. 
o David Hackleman acknowledged the extensive work put into the report and emphasized the need 

for clarity regarding the enclosed flare installation timeline. 
o Raised concerns over a pre-enforcement letter received from Oregon DEQ indicating non-

compliance, suggesting a full report should be requested from the Commissioners. 
 
Fires Associated with Flares: 

o Highlighted a fire incident near the flare and the need to understand the history of such events. 
o Republic Services confirmed that there had been prior fire incidents at the landfill. 
o Discussion on the relevance of the Carbon Mapper report and whether it should be included in the 

annual report. Decision made to withdraw comments regarding the Carbon Mapper from the current 
agenda. 

o A motion was made (Jeff Morrell) and seconded (Rachel Purcell) to recommend the 
acceptance of the report by the Commissioners, along with prepared comments for their 
consideration. The motion passed unanimously. 

o The report needs to be submitted to the Commissioners before their meeting on October 1, 2024. 
 

8. Agenda Item #9: Public Engagement Overview 
o Presentation on how Benton County is engaging with the public through the website, social media, 

and community involvement efforts. 
o Mention of updated website features, including a timeline of developments at Coffin Butte. 
o Emphasis on the Benton County talks trash process and email notifications for community members 

interested in solid waste issues. 
• Communication Initiatives: Recent email blasts were sent out to the county’s contact list 

announcing the current meeting.  
• An ad regarding the meeting appeared in the Gazette Times, although some attendees expressed 

they had not seen it. 

9



  
Page 6 of 7 

 

• Discussion on public awareness of meetings, specifically noting that the public may not know that 
meetings occur on the second Wednesday of each month. 

• The difficulty of finding the DSAC (Development Sustainability Advisory Committee) page on the 
Benton County website was highlighted. Concerns were raised about outdated information and 
unclear navigation. 

• Suggested utilizing social media and other channels to enhance outreach beyond official 
announcements. 

• Acknowledgment of Ken's recent opinion piece that generated public interest. 
• The committee agreed to empower members to disseminate information through their own 

networks. 
 
9. Agenda Item #8: Election Discussion 

• Elections for the chair and vice chair of DSAC are due before the first meeting of the new year, 
traditionally held in December. 

• A proposal was made to elect a vice chair in the next meeting to relieve the current chair of meeting 
duties. 

• Concerns regarding confidence in voting for new members were discussed, suggesting that 
elections should be held after members have gained sufficient experience. 
 

Discussion on Vice Chair Appointment 
• There was a discussion on the need to appoint a vice chair to balance the leadership and assist with 

training new members. 
• It was suggested that Rachel could be a candidate for the vice chair position. 
• A nomination committee was proposed to gather interest from potential candidates. 
• Decision deferred until the next meeting, with an acknowledgment of an upcoming election in 

November or December. 
 

Upcoming Meetings 
• Clarification on the number of required meetings: The committee needs to hold at least four 

meetings per year. An October 9th meeting is scheduled, and the decision on November and 
December meetings remains open. 
 

Proposal for Voting on Vice Chair 
• David Hackleman recommended voting for a vice chair at the next meeting. 
• General consensus that electing a vice chair is a good idea and will be included in the agenda for the 

next meeting. 
 
10. Agenda Item #10 - Request for Agenda Items 

• Matthew Ruettgers emailed the DSAC chair (Ken Eklund) about the committee’s role and 
addressing concerns of scope creep. 

• Matthew will be invited to provide input on the email, as he could not attend the current meeting. 
 
Site Security Discussion 

• David Hackleman raised the issue of site security at the landfill, specifically regarding the 
management of idle equipment during non-operational hours. 

• This will be added as a potential agenda item for the next meeting. 
 
11. Agenda Item #11 - Adjournment 

• A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Rachel Purcell and seconded by Brent Pawlowski. 
• The motion was unanimously approved. 

 

10



  
Page 7 of 7 

 

Next Meeting: October 9, 2024 
Meeting Adjourned at: 8:09 p.m. 
Minutes Prepared by: Bailey Payne, staff 
Date of Preparation: 9/20/24 
 
Next Steps 

Issue Assigned to: 
Clarify ENRAC’s public input policies and update the committee at 
future meetings. 

Staff 

The committee asked staff to consolidate public comments and 
questions for Republic Services. 

Staff 

Draft and circulate the fire safety report for committee review. 
Committee members to send comments or additional information to 
David. David Hackleman to submit the report to the chair and Mr. 
Payne for review. 

David Hackleman 

Republic Services to provide additional details on fire safety as 
requested. 

Ian MacNab 

Draft additional feedback to the board of commissioners for the 
Republic Services 2023 Annual Report (updated) report's introduction. 

Rachel Purcell 

 

11



    

 
Memo on DSAC 

elections from Chuck 
Gilbert 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

12



     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

A. The Tactical Committee will review any request by Committee Members to assure 
sufficient materials presented can be researched. The Tactical Committee will be also an 
advisory committee to the Research Committee. 

B. The Research Committee will compile a report to the Committee Members to with the 
committee’s charges.  

 

I hereby make a motion to elect  Rachel Purcell as Chair and David Hackleman as Vice 
Chair. 

 

C.R. Gilbert , Member 

CHAIR VICE CHAIR 

Tactical  -Committee  

Chair 

Vice Chair  

Research Committee  

Chair  

Committee Members 

Agents for Committees  

13



This memo functions as biased in the sense it does not represent the consensus of DSAC but hopefully instead serves as 
reasonable information for the committee’s function to review additional information for a consensus of the subject 
matter if necessary. 

 

PFAS 
PLASMA GASIFICATION UPDATE 

 

DSAC | COFFIN BUTE | 9/24/2024| PFAS UPDATE 
 

14



PLASMA TECHNOLOGY EFFECTIVELY DESTROYS PFAS  
 

On August 23,, 2024, Waste Today (Ref 1;) magazine reported that InEnTec Inc, Richland, Washington, has 
partnered with Terre Environmental LLC, North Charleston, South Carolina to destroy per-and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS) using InEnTec’s proprietary plasma processing technology. InEnTec says the results pave the 
way for commercial-scale remediation of these chemicals of concern at existing facilities.  

InEnTec’s Columbia Ridge’s Model G100P PEM (Plasma Enhanced Melter) system is located at Waste 
Management’s landfill near Arlington Oregon. Here it converts municipal solid waste, hazardous and medical 
waste streams into syngas for further production of renewable hydrogen.  

ADVANTAGES AND DISAVANTAGES OF WASTE-TO ENERGY 
COVERSION OF SANITARY SLUDGE FEEDSTCOK IN PLASMA 
GASFIFICATION:  (REF 2) 
 

 Advantages: 

• Waste Reduction: Reduces sludge volume and landfill needs. 

• Energy Recovery: Converts sludge into syngas for electricity, heat, or fuel. 

• Environmental Benefits: Destroys harmful compounds and produces fewer emissions than incineration. 

• Minimal Residuals: Leaves inert slag, which can be safely disposed of or reused. 

• Resource Recovery: Allows for recovery of nutrients like phosphorus from slag. 

 

Disadvantages: 

• High Costs: Expensive to build and operate, with high energy demands. 

• Feedstock Pre-treatment: Moisture in sludge reduces efficiency, requiring energy-intensive drying. 

• Complex Technology: Requires skilled labor and consistent feedstock quality. 

• Limited Adoption: Not widely used commercially, so long-term performance is uncertain. 

• Potential Emissions: Small amounts of pollutants like CO2 may still be released. 

 

 

 

 

15



PAGE 1 

The EPA is actively working toward regulating PFAS emissions and has made significant progress through its PFAS 
Strategic Roadmap. As of 2024 (Ref 5), the agency has already proposed regulations for drinking water standards for key 
PFAS chemicals and has been tackling PFAS discharges from industrial sources. However, setting comprehensive 
standards for PFAS air emissions is still a work in progress. 

Recently, several states, including North Carolina, New Mexico, and New Jersey, petitioned the EPA to add specific 
PFAS chemicals like PFOA, PFOS, PFNA, and GenX to the list of hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) under the Clean Air 
Act. This step would lead to stricter regulations for air emissions of these "forever chemicals," which have been linked 
to environmental contamination of water, soil, and air, posing health risks to communities ( Ref 3, Ref 4) 

While the EPA has not yet set official air emission standards for PFAS, this petition signals growing pressure and 
potential action within the near future(Ref 6) 

The main purpose of this memo is a pathway forward to covert PFAS laden sludge into an economical and cost-effective 
conversion to green bio-fuel.  

 

 

References; 

Ref 1;  InEnTec says its plasma technology effectively destroys PFAS - Waste Today (wastetodaymagazine.com) 

Ref 2; Plasma gasification of sewage sludge: Process development and energy optimization - ScienceDirect  

Ref 3; Inside EPA’s Roadmap on Regulating PFAS Chemicals - Earthjustice  

Ref 4;  3 States Call on EPA to Regulate PFAS Air Emissions - EcoWatch 

Ref 5; https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024  

Ref 6; NC Dept. of Environmental Quality 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

https://www.wastetodaymagazine.com/news/inentec-says-its-plasma-technology-effectively-destroys-pfas/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0196890408000502#preview-section-abstract
https://earthjustice.org/feature/pfas-chemicals-epa-roadmap
https://www.ecowatch.com/pfas-air-pollution-epa-states-petition.html
https://www.epa.gov/pfas/pfas-strategic-roadmap-epas-commitments-action-2021-2024
https://www.deq.nc.gov/news/press-releases/2024/08/29/states-ask-epa-designate-several-pfas-hazardous-air-pollutants


    

 
Fire safety report from 

David Hackleman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



20 September, 2024 
Draft Letter to be considered by Benton County (Oregon) Disposal Site Advisory Committee 
composed by request of BCDSAC during meeting of 19 September, 2024.  David Hackleman, author. 
 
To:  BCC (Benton County Commissioners) 
 
Cc:  BCDSAC (Benton County Disposal Site Advisory Committee 
 Ian McNab, Republic Representative, Republic Coffin Butte Landfill Site 
         
Regarding:  Republic Coffin Butte Landfill Site Fire safety and preparedness. 
 
At the 11 September, 2024 meeting of BCDSAC,  Mr. McNab and others provided a summary of the 
safety and preparedness which Republic representatives, colleagues, contractors and staff  provide at 
the Coffin Butte Landfill site in Benton County, Oregon.  In addition, officials from the Adair Rural 
Fire department responsible for this region in Benton County and members of the BCDSAC provided 
additional commentary.    
 
Safety and preparedness summary:  The effectiveness and preparedness varies per the following: 
 
Condition One:  During the hours of operation, the procedures and processes which Republic and it's 
resources apply have demonstrated themselves as effective means to discover and resolve any and all 
fire incidents that have taken place within the confines of the Landfill site.  Several such events have 
taken place during the operations based on commentary by Republic representatives, and none were 
mentioned as requiring fire department assistance.   
 
Condition Two:  During hours of closure, generally from 6PM through 6AM daily and on any and all 
holiday/closed days (the equivalent of at least 211 days a year) , these procedures and processes are 
ineffective as they rely solely upon observation and action by employees of the operations.  Hence fire 
safety and preparedness is based on external observers discovering an event and notifying the 
appropriate authorities, usually through a call to 911.   The Adair Rural Fire Department has responded 
to extinguish observed significant, potentially calamitous fires that were identified by random public 
observers during hours of closure of the landfill operations.  While such voluntary reporting of fires is 
greatly appreciated by all concerned, it is inadequate and inappropriate to rely upon such for a site 
known to have fire generation during normal operations and potential for fire emergence beyond such 
operations periods based on the nature of the operation and historical records.  
 
Request to Commissioners:  In light of these findings: 

• it is recommended to pursue this inquiry regarding fire safety and in particular encourage the 
installation of continuous fire monitoring/alert systems which do not rely upon random public 
observers.  (A suggestion of a system provided below.) 

 
Suggestion:  For the extent of the Coffin Butte Landfill and all adjacent properties owned, maintained, 
leased and/or utilized by the operations and subsidiary operations under the auspices of Republic, it is 
requested that a continuous fire detection and alert system1 be implemented and approved by the Adair 
Rural Fire Department and the Benton County Oregon Fire Marshal. 

 
1  One example of an automated system for this purpose is available via the company Torch 
Systems (www.torchsystems.com).  There are many other options, some include security and emissions 
monitoring and reporting.  This system has not been vetted by BCDSAC. 

18

http://www.torchsystems.com/


    

 
2023 Coffin Butte 

Landfill Report – Letter 
to BOC from Rachel 

Purcell 
 
 
 
 
 

 

19



    

 
2022 Community 
Concerns Annual 

Report (Draft) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 

 

 

2022 Coffin Butte Landfill Community Member Concerns Annual Report 

 
Prepared By:  

Preparation Date: August 13, 2024 

 

The duties of Benton County’s Disposal Site Advisory Committee (DSAC) are outlined in Oregon state law—
specifically in ORS 459.325, which includes the requirement that “the committee shall prepare an annual 
written report summarizing the local citizens’ concerns and the manner in which the owner or operator is 
addressing those concerns” which will be considered by the Department of Environmental Quality as part of 
issuing and renewing a solid waste permit. 

Benton County staff and the DSAC have prepared this staff report summarizing community member concerns 
regarding Coffin Butte Landfill in 2022, which may be used by DSAC to meet the requirements of ORS 459.325. 
Concerns listed in this report have been compiled using information from the Coffin Butte Landfill & Pacific 
Region Compost Annual Report 2022, complaints received by Benton County staff, complaints received by the 
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and concerns presented during Benton County Disposal Site 
Advisory Committee and Solid Waste Advisory Council meetings. 

Sixty-four complaints about the Coffin Butte Landfill were reported in 2022 as detailed in Table 1 and Table 2. 
Some complaints included numerous topics while others focused on a single concern. The complaints were 
organized into themes as illustrated in the following chart.  

The number of complaints in 2021 and 2022 was significantly higher than in previous years. One explanation for 
this is that Republic Services submitted a conditional use permit to expand the landfill in 2021 which was 
eventually withdrawn in March 2022. This elicited a lot of public feedback and may have led to more complaints. 
Another reason that there may have been more complaints is that Benton County began a community 
engagement process called Benton County Talks Trash. This endeavor spanned from 9/8/22 through 4/10/23 
and included 11 public workgroup meetings and 86 subcommittee meetings. This process welcomed community 
input, some of which were complaints about the landfill. 

The Oregon DEQ notified Republic Services of 20 
complaints which have been integrated into Table 1. 

Odor
23%

GHG
9%

Litter
11%

Traffic
5%

Out-of-County Waste…

Health
6%

Wildlife
6%

Lanfill Intake 
Data
20%

Water 
Quality

4%

Tonnage cap 
/ lifespan

6%

Other
7%

Community Member Concerns 
about Coffin Butte Landfill

65,042 

75,026 

83,498 

90,039 

113,381 
120,309 

115,412 
114,217 

131,360 128,335 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Vehicles per Year to Coffin Butte 
Landfill

21

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/bctt_final_report_4-11-2023.pdf


Table 1:  Coffin Butte Landfill Community Concern Log 2022 
# Date Concern Summary Received 

By 
Compliant / 
Concern 
Communication 
Method 

Manner in which 
the landfill is 
addressing those 
concerns 

1 1/24/20
22 

The toxic odor coming from the Coffin Butte Landfill managed by Republic Services is 
overwhelming on my property today. It causes stomach upset and lightheadedness if 
outside for more than a few minutes. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

enhanced 
inspection 
planned 

2 1/24/20
22 

Odors and gasses move into our region regularly.. DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

1/25 (SG) - this is 
a permitted facility 
rerouting 
complaint.enhanc
ed inspection 
planned 

3 1/25/20
22 

Went outside to work in the garden around noon - odor was so disgusting that I came 
inside as soon as my work was done. This was especially annoying as I had much to do 
outside and it was a beautiful day. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

1/27 (SGallino) - 
received this 
complaint from 
Wilson Wade. 
Reassigned to 
Karen White-
Fallon.enhanced 
inspection 
planned 

4 1/25/20
22 

Late morning worked outside under terrible odors and air quality that seemed unhealthy. 
After lunch could no longer put off walking the dogs and walked in the awful stench.  I 
ran into a neighbor also out walking who wondered if we were doing more harm than 
good to our health breathing what seems like toxic air. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

1/27 (SGallino) - 
received this 
complaint from 
Wilson Wade. 
Reassigned to 
Karen White-
Fallon.enhanced 
inspection 
planned 

5 1/25/20
22 

Several times each week our family drives hwy 99 Independence Hwy and hwy 20 from 
our Soap Creek Valley home in Benton Co. These roadways’ ditches are filled with trash 
and fields along these routes have plastic and other garbage that has blown into them. 
These are routes to the Coffin Butte Landfill.  The trash is never-ending and is an 
environmental hazard to wildlife and waterways. It is embarrassing that this continues to 
happen here; who is responsible for dealing with this? 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

enhanced 
inspection 
planned. 

22



6 1/26/20
22 

Concerns about landfill tonnage cap, lifespan, and revenue DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting, and 
written comment 

Unknown 

7 1/26/20
22 

Greenhouse gasses 
Debris escaping trucks and littering the roadway 

DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

8 1/26/20
22 

Landfill accepting out-of-county waste SWAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Benton County 
has no authority to 
limit out-of-county 
waste per a 
Supreme Court 
decision. 

9 1/26/20
22 

Air quality impacts from landfill cover SWAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

1
0 

1/26/20
22 

Unknown volume/types of hazardous materials accepted at the landfill;  SWAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

1
1 

1/28/20
22 

Landfill fumes once again effecting air quality. It is happening way more frequently to 2-3 
a week. It’s disgusting and impacts daily quality of life at home and inside the home 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

enhanced 
inspection 
planned 

1
2 

1/31/20
22 

Garbage trucks releasing roadside Litter and debris - Hwy 99; 
Acceptance of out-of-county waste; 
Traffic near landfill; 
Odors from landfill and PRC; 

Benton 
County 

Phone Benton County 
provided odor 
complaint 
resources 

1
3 

1/31/20
22 

Commerial trucks losing material on the way to the landfill creating truck traffic 
Odors from landfill and PRC 

North 
Albany 

Email Benton County 
provided odor 
complaint 
resources. 
Resident was 
encouraged to 
provide public 
testimony. 

1
4 

2/8/202
2 

It appears that some vehicle approaching or departing the Coffin Butte landfill spilled a 
portion of an unsecured  load leaving me to dodge broken chunks of plastic and a coil of 
metal scrap 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

This was a drive 
by complaint from 
someone who 
does not live near 
the landfill.  
Additionally based 
upon the 
information 
provided it would 
not be possible to 
determine if the 

23

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/DSAC-Final-Minutes-2022-01-26.pdf


trash observed 
was from a private 
vehicle or from the 
landfill trucks. 

1
5 

2/8/202
2 

Same old problem as fog or low clouds lift in mid-day it draws a hideous cloud of noxious 
odor to our house 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

enhanced 
inspection 
planned 

1
6 

2/15/20
22 

Drove into Corvallis today and looked at trash along the roadside of Hwy99 from the 
landfill at Coffin Butte Road all the way to (Hospital) Elks Drive. Looked at more trash on 
the way home. Appears to be more trash on the East side of Hwy99. Probably due to 
number of vehicles heading to the landfill. Welcome to Benton County! 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

1
7 

2/23/20
22 

Request for third-party audit of materials accepted at the landfill SWAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

1
8 

2/23/20
22 

Covanta plant ash used as ADC, health/safety, landfill gas monitoring SWAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Republic Services 
provided a 
presentation 
about Covanta 
Ash at the 
4/27/22 DSAC 
meeting. 

1
9 

3/23/20
22 

Concerns the landfill causes nearby residents cancer. (Written comment) SWAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

2
0 

4/27/20
22 

Concern about landfill methane emissions  DSAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

2
1 

4/27/20
22 

Concern about landfill-related traffic  DSAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

2
2 

5/25/20
22 

Concern landfill is approaching maximum annual tonnage allowed SWAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

2
3 

6/1/202
2 

Odor shows up typically on beautiful fair weather days like today. Often it starts in mid-
morning when any light clouds or other moisture in the air begins to lift as the day 
warms. Then sticks around most of the day until nightfall. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

24

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-02-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-02-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-02-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-02-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-03-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-meeting-2022-03-23/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-DSAC-2022-04-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-DSAC-2022-04-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-DSAC-2022-04-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-DSAC-2022-04-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-05-25-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-05-25-Final-Minutes.pdf


2
4 

6/16/20
22 

on 6/14/2022 the property owner Zachary Zeek for 775 Gerth Ave NW was notified the 
results of a re-inspection of a recent cleanup by Bill Goff Construction. In May of 2022 
The site had a preexisting LUST number 27-04-2434. Bill Goff Construction removed a 
previous decommissioned 240-gallon underground heating oil tank. Goff Construction 
then collected worst case assessment soil samples from beneath the tank 
measurements indicated 3450 ppm diesel was present. Goff Construction removed 
4.63 tons of impacted soil which was transported to Coffin Butte Landfill for 
disposal.Goff Construction subsequently collected cleanup confirmation soil samples 
from the tank cleanup excavation. Four soil samples were collected at a depth of 90 to 
92 inches on each of the sides of the excavation. The reported results of Bill Goff 
Construction soil samples were three not detected for diesel and one soil sample had 
231 ppm diesel. The tank which was located on the south side of the house lay in a 
flowerbed between the concrete walkway and the house.  The excavation surface 
exposure was only three feet wide between the sidewalk and the house. They reportedly 
dug out the tank and the contaminted soil with five  gallon buckets by hand without 
shoring.  The tank was approximately 3 ft in diameter and 4 feet long.Bill Goff 
Construction sent the owner a certification letter for the property transaction stating the 
property meet DEQ Soil Matrix Standards.  And a bill for $8790 saying the project is 
complete. My InspectionThe subsurface soil boring was completed with AMS Power 
Probe and GeoProbe Dual tube 2.5 inch sampler. Soil core samples were collected in 5 
feet increments. The total depth of the boring was 25 feet. Groundwater bearing zone at 
the property was at 23 feet.After a subsurface inspection on 6/14/22 soil samples 
revealed that the tank had leaked and contamination remained in the excavation on the 
south side after reported to all removed by Bill Goff Construction. Heavy contamination 
was visible at 5 feet and 7.5 ft (91 inches). Soil contamination appeared to have 
cleaned up 14 feet depth on the south side of the excavation. The groundwater sample 
appeared to be clean. This site appears to have larger footprint of heating oil 
contamination than reported by BiIl Goff Construction. The question of this complaint 
comes my suspicions of Bill Goff's work it appears that every heating oil cleanup he 
submits in the last 6 years is a Soil Matrix Cleanup every one!  In 2020 i re investigated 
a heating oil tank cleanup at 950 SW Levens in Dallas Oregon DEQ file 27-17-0915 
which Erik Anderson of Anderson Geological. Our conclusion was that Bill Goff's Soil 
Matrix cleanup closure certification was grossly mistaken and inaccurate.Soil samples I 
obtained will be going to the laboratory today 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Had multiple 
conversations with 
Bill Goff and Karl 
Van Zandt. 
Completing extra 
review of a 
number of 
projects. Bill Goff 
came back to site 
and corrected 
errors at this site. 

2
5 

7/1/202
2 

The usual stench from the landfill. Once again occurring at my location as the marine 
clouds lift and the day warms. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

I contacted the 
facility and told 
them to add the 
complaint to their 
complaint log and 
to perform an 
odor investigation. 

25



2
6 

7/11/20
22 

Coffin Butte Landfill not accepting cash Benton 
County 

Phone Benton County 
notified Republic 
Services, 
requested further 
investigation 

2
7 

7/11/20
22 

Coffin Butte Landfill not accepting cash, after passing of SB 1565 Benton 
County 

Phone Referred to 
Republic Services 

2
8 

7/26/20
22 

Odors from Coffin Butte Landfill. Quite noticeable in the morning while we had a high 
pressure system and no wind. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

I contacted the 
facility and told 
them to add the 
complaint to their 
complaint log and 
to perform an 
odor investigation. 

2
9 

7/27/20
22 

Concern about details of collected and shared data associated with the landfill and PRC 
in annual reports: Accuracy of waste county-of-origin data, C&D data is not separately 
reported/recorded for all vehicle types at the landfill, too little detail for vehicle data, 
leachate hauling data, and gravel truck hauling data (written comment, also presented 
at 8/24/23 DSAC meeting). 

DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting, and 
written comment 

Unknown 

3
0 

7/27/20
22 

Concern about landfill impacts on nearby heron rookery. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
1 

7/27/20
22 

Concern about landfill annual report data - tonnage accuracy. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
2 

7/27/20
22 

Concern about high arsenic levels reported in monitoring wells in the landfill annual 
report. 

DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
3 

7/27/20
22 

Concern about landfill annual report data - PRC runoff not included. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
4 

7/30/20
22 

Coffin Butte Landfill by Republic DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

I contacted the 
facility and told 
them to add the 
complaint to their 
complaint log and 
to do an odor 
investigation.I 
emailed the 
complainant and 
let them know 
that I had 
contacted the 
facility regarding 
the complaint. 

26

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/Benton-County-SWAC-2022-07-27-Final-Minutes.pdf


3
5 

8/15/20
22 

The Coffin Butte dump smell is noticeable on occasion. Today it is really  bad. To the 
point of making me sick to my stomach when I walk around outside. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

I sent a message 
to the landfill and 
told them to add 
the complaint to 
the complaint log 
and asked them 
to do an 
investigation and 
to report back 
their findings.I 
also called and 
talked to the 
complainant on 
8/17/2022 and 
said I had 
contacted the 
landfill.  I asked if 
it could be the 
composting facility 
and was told no it 
smelled like the 
landfill not 
compost.  The 
complainant will 
let us know if it is 
an issue again. 

3
6 

8/24/20
22 

Concern landfill is approaching maximum annual tonnage allowed, concern DEQ solid 
waste disposal reports filed by Coffin Butte Landfill are shorter than previous years 
(written comment). 

DSAC 
Meeting 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

3
7 

8/24/20
22 

Concern landfill impacts on nearby heron rookery. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
8 

8/24/20
22 

Concern about landfill methane emissions. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

3
9 

8/24/20
22 

Concern that reported landfill capacity is not accurate. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

4
0 

8/24/20
22 

Concern about landfill methane emissions. DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

4
1 

8/24/20
22 

Concern about materials accepted at the landfill, recommending a characterization of 
accepted materials.  

DSAC 
Meeting 

Meeting Unknown 

27

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-08-24/


4
2 

10/6/20
22 

Concern about hazardous materials accepted at landfill via commercial waste collection, 
concern about hurdles and inaction in complaint process (written comment, duplicate of 
email complaint received by Benton County) 

Benton 
County 

Email Complainant filed 
complaints with 
DEQ, DEQ 
responded during 
BCTT process 

4
3 

10/6/20
22 

Hazardous materials accepted in garbage collection from commercial facilities Benton 
County 

Phone Unknown 

4
4 

10/7/20
22 

We typically smell the odor from the landfill on days when there is no wind and it is very 
still 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

4
5 

10/26/2
022 

Concerns about landfill closure date, fill rate, capacity, environmental cost of the landfill 
(including methane, PFAS, leachate, landfill gas emissions, air quality, wildlife impacts, 
traffic impacts, visual impacts, dust and litter, land use impacts, liner/cover 
maintenance, public security), regulatory and general compliance (federal, state, and 
local), material acceptance monitoring, material sources, accepted tonnage/intake rate, 
liability for remediation, quarry excavation, closure and reclamation plans, risks (fire, 
earthquakes, hazardous materials, PFAS, flood, power outages, multiple disasters, 
groundwater contamination, economic impacts 

SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

4
6 

10/26/2
022 

Concern landfill impacts on nearby heron rookery (written comment) SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

4
7 

10/26/2
022 

Concern about amount of recyclable materials in the landfill (written comment) SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

4
8 

10/26/2
022 

Concern about landfill material characterization, and methane containment SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

4
9 

10/26/2
022 

Concern about level of detail in landfill traffic reporting SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Written 
comment 

Unknown 

5
0 

11/16/2
022 

This was a typical Coffin Butte landfill odor event at my home: a beautiful sunny cool 
morning which starts with a low-hanging fog sucking landfill odors south through the 
Soap Creek Valley. By midday the odors dissipate. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

5
1 

12/7/20
22 

Concerns about rate of quarry excavation and impacts to available landfill airspace SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Meeting Unknown 

28

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-10-26/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/


5
2 

12/7/20
22 

Concern about various landfill business contracts/agreements increasing accepted 
tonnage and impacting landfill lifespan (in meeting and via written comment) 

SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Meeting, and 
written comment 

Unknown 

5
3 

12/7/20
22 

Concern about landfill compliance with land use conditions of approval SWAC & 
DSAC 
Joint Work 
Session 

Meeting Unknown 

5
4 

12/9/20
22 

Republic Services truck releasing roadside Litter and debris - Camp Adair Road Benton 
County 

Email Benton County 
notified Republic 
Services, 
requested further 
investigation 

5
5 

12/9/20
22 

Republic truck releasing trash along Camp Adair Road Benton 
County 

Email Sent the 
complaint details 
to Republic 
Services, asking 
for investigation 
and follow up for 
resolution, in 
order to prevent 
this from 
reoccuring. 

29

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/disposal-site-advisory-committee-dsac-solid-waste-advisory-council-swac-joint-meeting-2022-12-07/


5
6 

12/12/2
022 

Frequent odors surrounding neighborhood and beyond from Coffin Butte landfill- 
emissions gas unsafe air quality and it is happening more and more frequent- weekly if 
not daily at times . Absolutely unacceptable. We are becoming the new armpit of Oregon. 
So sad. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Since the 
complaint report 
doses not provide 
additional 
information 
regarding the date 
time or location 
that is difficult to 
track detail for the 
incident. 
According to 
representative of 
the landfill the 
landfill conducts 
regular drives 
through the areas 
surrounding Coffin 
Butte and haven’t 
detected offsite 
odors.  Their LFG 
collection system 
have been running 
as designed as 
well.  The landfill 
hasn’t started 
taking any new 
waste streams 
recently that 
would cause 
odors. 

5
7 

12/17/2
022 

driving home experience very strong smell upon entering the Soap Creek Valley.Odor too 
offensive for outdoor activities 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

5
8 

12/18/2
022 

The (sadly) typical disgusting odor of Coffin Butte Landfill. See comments above about 
atmostpheric conditions. The smelly air tends to concentrate in different strata of the 
atmosphere depending on the weather. Yesterday was a strong inversion and the odor 
was most concentrated at around 500-900 ft elevation. 

DEQ Reported on 
DEQ's online 
complaint form 

Not reported 

30



5
9 

9/2022-
4/2023 

The "Benton County Talks Trash" Solid waste workgroup process, taking place from 
9/2022-4/23, included many concerns ranging in topics. Major discussion categories 
included solid waste planning, landfill size/capacity/longevity, legal and land use issues, 
compliance with past land use conditions, and community outreach. Full report with 
detailed concerns can be found here: 
https://www.co.benton.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_developm
ent/page/8208/bctt_final_report_4-11-2023.pdf  

Benton 
County 
Talks 
Trash 
Solid 
waste 
workgrou
p process 

Meetings, 
written 
comments 

Benton County 
began Sustainable 
Materials 
Management Plan 
development 
process 

 

 

 

Table 2: Concerns received by Coffin Butte 
Landfill (table sourced from Coffin Butte Landfill 
and Pacific Region Compost Annual Report 
2022). 

Note that the 25 complaints noted in February 
in the chart to the left have been included in the 
table above. Five of these were in 2023 and 
therefore not included in this report. 

31

https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/
https://cd.bentoncountyor.gov/benton-county-talks-trash/


    

 
 
Answers to questions 
for Republic Services 
raised at last meeting 

 
 
 
 

 

32



    

Community concerns 
received since last 

meeting  One Comment: 
From Michael Schuyler on 9/17: I read Ken Eklund's letter to the GT editor today, asking for 
input. I have some. 
 
Sometime this past year I listened to a talk offered by the Academy for Lifelong Learning 
that was mainly a discussion by a fellow from a European country (Germany or Netherlands 
or...?) covering the way European countries are replacing landfills to an amazing extent with 
diverse recycling and treatment methods. It was eye-opening, to say the least. The basic 
story was that landfills there are nearly entirely being replaced by extensive Green 
approaches. 
 
I attended last month's talk at the Corvallis Community Center that focused on our own 
landfill expansion, which I already knew was driven by financial gains for Republic Services, 
seemingly favored by the county supervisors because of the income the county realizes 
when Republic pays to handle one-third of Oregon's untreated waste in Coffin Butte. 
 
I am a chemist, retired from OSU Chem Dept., and I understand the role methane has on 
our planet's atmoshpere. Landfills are said to contribute about a third of the methane 
emissions into the atmosphere in the US. Expanding our landfill will accelerate this, looking 
away from the problem. I learned at the talk that should Benton County refuse to permit 
the expansion, which mainly serves citizens outside our county, would provide a serious 
encouragement to find another way...and it would NOT mean we in Corvallis would have to 
find immediately another way to dispose of our trash without recourse. 
 
After listening to the way Europe is directing its citizen to take a role in separating 
recyclables and treating trash, I want to encourage all of us to take part in that. In fact, 
during the evening talk, the "Toxics..." fellow from Eugene claimed that Eugene is moving in 
that direction (extensive separation and thermal treatment of some part of the leftovers). 
 
Turn down the expansion (I have a yard sign!). 
 
Michael Schuyler  

33



    

 
Relevant news articles 

since last meeting 
 

 
9/17/2024 
Gazette Times  
https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a7/page_37bbdcba-dba1-5da5-a9fd-
1cec476cba73.html?utm_medium=social&utm_source=email&utm_campaign=user-share 
DSAC - Come to a landfill committee meeting 
 
9/24/2024  
Gazette Times  
https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a8/page_27a44987-f291-5df0-b124-
15b830d34e15.html 
Coffin Butte - Become familiar with landfill issue 
 
9/25/2024 
Canary  Media  
https://www.canarymedia.com/articles/methane/colorado-launches-first-of-a-kind-landfill-
methane-monitoring-program 
Methane - Colorado launches first-of-a-kind landfill methane monitoring program 
 
9/26/2024 
Waste Dive  
https://www.wastedive.com/news/epa-warns-landfill-owners-gas-monitoring-collection-
enforcement-alert/728128/ 
Landfill - Monitoring - EPA warns landfill owners to meet gas monitoring and collection 
obligations amid noncompliance 
 
9/27/2024  
6 News  
https://cbs6albany.com/news/local/lawmakers-push-for-fence-line-air-monitoring-at-dunn-
landfill  
Landfill – Monitoring - Lawmakers push for fence line air monitoring at Dunn Landfill 

34

https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a7/page_37bbdcba-dba1-5da5-a9fd-1cec476cba73.html?utm_medium=social&utm_source=email&utm_campaign=user-share
https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a7/page_37bbdcba-dba1-5da5-a9fd-1cec476cba73.html?utm_medium=social&utm_source=email&utm_campaign=user-share
https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a8/page_27a44987-f291-5df0-b124-15b830d34e15.html
https://gazettetimes.com/eedition/page-a8/page_27a44987-f291-5df0-b124-15b830d34e15.html
https://www.canarymedia.com/articles/methane/colorado-launches-first-of-a-kind-landfill-methane-monitoring-program
https://www.canarymedia.com/articles/methane/colorado-launches-first-of-a-kind-landfill-methane-monitoring-program
https://www.wastedive.com/news/epa-warns-landfill-owners-gas-monitoring-collection-enforcement-alert/728128/
https://www.wastedive.com/news/epa-warns-landfill-owners-gas-monitoring-collection-enforcement-alert/728128/
https://cbs6albany.com/news/local/lawmakers-push-for-fence-line-air-monitoring-at-dunn-landfill
https://cbs6albany.com/news/local/lawmakers-push-for-fence-line-air-monitoring-at-dunn-landfill

	1-2024.10.09 DSAC Meeting Agenda (FINAL).pdf
	2024.10.09 DSAC Meeting Packet.pdf
	2024.10.09 DSAC Meeting Packet.pdf
	2024.10.09 DSAC Meeting Packet TOC
	1-2024.10.09 DSAC Meeting Agenda (FINAL)
	1b-2024.09.19 DSAC Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)
	3. Agenda Item #3: Fire Safety at Coffin Butte Landfill
	Proposal for Fire Safety Report
	Discussion Points: Landfill Compliance and Methane Management:
	Discussion on Vice Chair Appointment
	Upcoming Meetings
	Proposal for Voting on Vice Chair
	10. Agenda Item #10 - Request for Agenda Items
	Site Security Discussion
	11. Agenda Item #11 - Adjournment

	2-DSAC Election Memo (Chuck Gilbert)
	DSAC Memo PFAS  Plasma Gasification a remedial path forward
	Plasma Technology effectively destroys pfas
	Advantages and disavantages of waste-to energy coversion of sanitary sludge feedstcok in plasma gasfification:  (Ref 2)

	3-Fire Safety 9 30 2024 a
	5-2022 Coffin Butte Landfill Community Member Concerns Annual Report (DRAFT)





